PUBLIC NOTICE

City of Lockhart
Zoning Board of Adjustment
6:30 PM, Monday, June 7, 2021
Municipal Building — Glosserman Room
308 W. San Antonio St.

BOARD MEMBER AUDIO CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION

One or more members of the Lockhart Zoning Board of Adjustment may participate in a meeting remotely. The
member of the Board presiding over the meeting will be physically present at the above public location. Audio
conference equipment providing two-way audio communication with each member participating remotely will be
made available, and each portion of the meeting held by audio conference that is required to be open to the
public can be heard by the public at the location specified.

CITIZEN AUDIO CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION

e Call-in number: 1-408-418-9388. Attendee Access Code: 626-304-323#.

o Citizens wishing to listen or participate must call in prior to the start of the meeting, and should identify
themselves. Attendees may call in to listen only, if desired.

e Those wishing to speak will be called upon to address the Board.

e Zoning Board of Adjustment agenda packets can be viewed online at www.lockhart-tx.org starting two days
prior to the meeting. Navigate from the Departments tab at the top of the page to Development Services —
Meeting Minutes/Schedules (on left side) — Agendas & Minutes — Zoning Board of Adjustment Agendas &
Minutes — Agenda Packets.

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order.
2. Citizen comments not related to a public hearing item.
3. Consider the minutes of the May 3, 2021 meeting.

4. ZV-21-04. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Jim Smith on behalf of Jack Pearce, LLC, for a
Variance to Appendix Il, Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to allow a reduction in the minimum
10-foot rear-yard building setback to zero feet for a new building on Lots 1 and 2, Jack Pearce Subdivision,
consisting of 0.17 acre zoned CCB (Commercial Central Business District) and located at 120 and 124 East Market
Street.

5. ZV-21-05. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by lan Stowe for a Variance to Appendix ll, Chapter
64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to waive the requirement for off-street parking for a commercial
building on Part of Lot 1, Block 42, Original Town of Lockhart, consisting of 0.239 acre zoned CMB (Commercial
Medium Business District) and located at 214 Brazos Street.

6. ZV-21-06. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Lance Elrod on behalf of Blackjack Block I, LLC, for
a Variance to Appendix I, Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to increase the maximum lot
coverage standard from 50 percent to 51.19 percent for new structures on Lot 1, Block 1, Iron Ox Addition,
consisting of 24.575 acres zoned IL (Industrial Light District) and located at 1205 Reed Drive.

7. Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting.

8. Adjourn.

Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street,
Lockhart, Texas at 4:00 p.m. on the 1% day of June, 2021.



CITY OF LOCKHART
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
MAY 03, 2021

MINUTES

Members Present: Wayne Reeder, Mike Annas, Anne Clark, Kirk Smith, Severo Castillo (By Phone),
Sean Martinez (By Phone)
Members Absent: Lori Rangel, Laura Cline

Staff Present: Christine Banda, Kevin Waller, Dan Gibson

Others Present: lan Stowe (applicant, Agenda Item (4)), Arthur Palacios (applicant, Agenda Item
(5)), Winn Smith, Robert McGee

1. Call meetingto order. Chair Cline called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. Citizen comments not related to a public hearing item. None

3. Consider the minutes of the April 5, 2021 meeting,

Member Annas moved to approve the April 5, 2021 minutes. Member Reeder seconded, and the
motion passed by a vote of 6-0.

4, 7V-21-03. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by lan Stowe for a Variance to Section
64-197{g}{1){b) of Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to allow vehicles utilizing one
regular off-street parking space to back into the street on Part of Lot 1, Block 42, Original Town of
Lockhart, consisting of 0.239 acre zoned CMB {Commercial Medium Business District) and located
at 214 Brazos Street.

Planning Staff Kevin Waller explained that the property currently contains a vacant single-family
residence, which is a nonconforming use in the CMB zoning district. The applicant and owner lan
Stowe recently remodeled the building for a proposed tattoo parlor. Since a parking lot will not fit
in the front yard of the property, Mr. Stowe wishes to utilize off-site parking from a neighboring
property owner. He is waiting to hear back from those owners if they will allow the four additional
parking spaces that are needed. The variance request is to ailow one regular parking space to back
into the street. Mr. Waller gave a PowerPoint presentation, reviewed the variance criteria, and
stated that Staff recommends approval.

Vice-Chair Clark, acting as Chairman in Laura Cline’s absence, opened the public hearing and asked
for the applicant to come forward.

Applicant lan Stowe of 428 Trinity Street explained that he recently bought the property, which was
previously used as a residence in the CMB zoning district. He wishes to open a commercial business

Zoning Board of Adjustment 05-03-21



at the property, which must meet the parking standards of the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Stowe had
asked nearby business owners if they would be willing to allow four of the required parking spaces
to be provided on their properties. With the variance proposal, he is requesting that customer
vehicles utilizing one off-street regular parking space on the subject property be allowed to back
into the street.

Winn Smith of 8406 Avocet Drive, Austin, stated that he is not necessarily opposed to the variance,
but more so indifferent. He asked what would happen if the variance is denied, and if only one
parking space would be allowed for the proposed use. Mr. Smith does not understand why this
side of the street is zoned for commercial use when it is primarily in residential use. He also
wondered how the other homes would be affected by the variance. Smith has no issues with cars
from the single-family homes backing into the street.

Mr. Waller explained that there are five required off-street parking spaces for a commercial use on
the subject property. If the variance is denied and the off-site parking spaces are not granted by
nearby business owners, the applicant could potentially submit a new variance application to
request the waiving of all required off-street parking spaces. If that variance were to be denied,
the applicant ostensibly could construct a parking lot in the rear of the property for the five required
spaces.

Vice-Chair Clark asked for any other speakers; seeing and hearing none, she closed the public
hearing.

Planning Staff Dan Gibson explained that all vehicle parking and circulation must occur entirely on
the subject property. The property’s current zoning designation was put in place prior to his
employment with the City, so the home is grandfathered as a residence, but the proposed use is
commercial.

Member Annas moved to deny ZV-21-03. Member Clark seconded, and the motion passed by a vote
of 6-0.

SE-21-01. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Arthur Palacios, on behalf of Robert
McGee, for a Special Exception as provided in Section 64-130(c}(5} of Chapter 64 “Zoning,”,
Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to preclude an essentially inadvertent taking of property due to an
existing nonconforming lot depth on Part of Lots 4 and 5, Block 3, Original Town of Lockhart,

consisting of 0.234 acre zoned CMB (Commercial Medium Business District) and located at 110 East

Live Qak Street.

Mr. Waller stated that the applicant plans to demolish the existing home and redevelop the
property with a mixed-use building to contain both residential and commercial office uses. He
explained that the lot depth is nonconforming and does not meet the required depth for the current
zoning designation. Therefore, approval of a Special Exception is necessary to enable the property
to be redeveloped. Waller stated that Staff recommends approval of the Special Exception.

Vice-Chair Clark opened the public hearing and asked for the applicant to come forward.

Zoning Board of Adjustment 05-03-21



Robert McGee of 612 State Park Road stated that he owns the property. He came to know Mr.
Palacios when they were remodeling the old gas station to the west of his property. Mr. McGee
has faith that his property value will improve with the future proposed mixed-use building.

Applicant Arthur Palacios of 2109 East Cesar Chavez, Austin, stated that he had just completed the
mixed-use building project at the former gas station next door. During the remodel, he got to know
Mr. McGee, and had asked him about the property next door. Mr. Palacios believes he can add a
quality development to the property and would appreciate the Board’s approval.

Vice Chair Clark asked for any other speakers; seeing and hearing none, she closed the public
hearing, and asked the Board for a motion.

Member Annas moved to approve SE-21-01. Member Smith seconded, and the motion passed by a
vote of 6-0.

Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting.

Mr. Waller stated that the next regularly scheduled meeting would be held Monday, June 7, 2021,
if applications are received by the May 17 deadline.

Adjourn.

Member Smith moved to adjourn the meeting, and Member Reeder seconded. The motion passed
by a vote of 6-0, and the meeting adjourned at 7:04 p.m.

Approved:

(Date)

Christine Banda, Recording Secretary Anne Clark, Vice-Chair

Zoning Board of Adjustment 05-03-21



=== L a0 L \

RHD RMD\@QZ.------\‘\ 401\ \ \ \

\ogo214|  401) ko | A | N R

| ot T e 403, || |

ZV-21-04

120 & 124 E MARKET ST N% [ subject Property
| Zoning Boundary

TO WAIVE THE REQUIRED REAR YARD

BUILDING SETBACK TO ZERO FEET
scale 1" = 200’



PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT ZONING VARIANCE

CASE SUMMARY o
STAFF CONTACT: Kevin Waller, Assistant City Planner \C\}\/ CASE NUMBER: ZV-21-04
REPORT DATE: June 2, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: June 7, 2021

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Variance to Appendix Il to allow a reduction in the minimum required
rear-yard building setback from 10 feet to zero feet.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

CONDITIONS: None

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: Jim Smith

OWNER: Jack Pearce, LLC

SITE LOCATION: 120 and 124 East Market Street
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lots 1 and 2, Jack Pearce Subdivision
SIZE OF PROPERTY: 0.17 acre

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Temporary City Park / Outdoor Gathering Space
ZONING CLASSIFICATION:  CCB (Commercial Central Business District)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED VARIANCE: The applicant wishes to develop the property with a
three-story mixed-use commercial and residential building on the last two undeveloped parcels on
the southeast side of the Courthouse Square. The building is proposed to directly abut the rear, or
south, property line. According to Appendix Il of the Zoning Ordinance, the rear-yard setback in the
CCB Zoning District is 10 feet, and the Variance request is to effectively waive that setback in its
entirety. The CCB District does not require setbacks from the front or side property lines. Since the
property is located within the Historic District, any new building must first receive approval of a
Certificate for Alteration from the Historical Preservation Commission. In addition, approval of a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) from the Planning and Zoning Commission is required if a mixed-use
building, or any commercial use requiring an SUP, is proposed (Zoning Ordinance Section
64-196(h)(2)). Currently, the property is being leased by the City for an outdoor gathering space and
park area. The owner plans to move forward with the proposed project once the City’s lease expires.

AREA CHARACTERISTICS: The subject property is located within the City’s central business district. It
is bordered to the west by a tattoo parlor, and Henry’s restaurant is located to the south, on the
opposite side of a 15-foot wide public alley dedicated to the City. East Market Street abuts the
subject property to the north, and South Commerce Street to the east. The Old Pal Bar and Grill at
the opposite, or west, end of the same block as the subject property, appears to be only other
property on that block with a building located within the 10-foot rear-yard setback.

UNIQUE CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY: The location of the 15-foot wide public alley dedicated to the
City, bordering the south end of the subject property, could be considered a unique condition.
Neighboring properties to the west are not bordered by the alley, which is only 66.36 feet long and
ends at the southwest corner of the subject property. The rear-yard setback of the subject property,
therefore, begins 15 feet further north than that of the neighboring properties due to the presence of
the alley, which Staff believes creates a unique condition. Additionally, prior to the property’s
platting and dedication of the alley in 2003, the 10-foot rear setback would have begun at the north
property line of the adjacent property to the south, and would have ended five feet south of the



north boundary of the alley, or within the alley itself. By proposing to construct a building on the
current rear property line, the building will actually be located further from the neighboring property
to the south than it would have been if the subject property had not been replatted as part of the
Jack Pearce Subdivision and the alley never dedicated.

NATURE OF HARDSHIP: Neither increased financial gain nor reduced financial hardship will be
achieved as a result of constructing a new building closer to the rear property line.

EFFECT ON SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND PUBLIC SAFETY: Since the 15-foot wide alley will not be
encroached upon by the proposed building on the subject property, it will effectively create a buffer
between the building and the neighboring property to the south. As a result, there will be no
increased impacts to surrounding properties and public safety. Service access to the rear of the
future-proposed building will still be available from the alley.

ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS: Alternative solutions to the proposed variance would either be to require
the building to maintain the full 10-foot rear setback, or to reduce the setback to a distance
somewhere between zero and ten feet.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: A letter was received by the Planning Department on June 3, 2021
(attached), in which an individual owning property on the same block expressed concerns about
day-to-day operations of a building abutting the property line potentially creating challenges for
neighboring properties.



FRONM THE DESK OF
PHILIP DUCLOUX
P.O. BOX 3

BASTROP, TEXAS 78602
PHONE (512) 303-1477
email: ducloux@austin.rr.com

May 31, 2021

Mr. Kevin Waller

Assistant City Planner — City of Lockhart

Lockhart, Texas 78644

P O Box 4915

Corpus Christi, Texas 78469 via email to Kwaller@lockhart-tx.org and fax to 512-398-5103

Re: ZV-21-04
Greetings Mr. Waller,

I have received your notice of public hearing scheduled for June 7,2021. I am taking you up
on your invitation to submit a written statement to you for presentation to the Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

I own property next to a property that has no exterior space of its own. The inevitable
consequence of that building’s limitation is that its occupiers and contractors must use my property to
do those things that are usually done outside. Contractors, suppliers, utility providers, etc., don’t
really know whose property they use and often damage. As use and density intensify, so do the
incursions and damages.

Circumstances such as those existing in downtown Lockhart absolutely require cooperation
among owners and occupants but this proposal invites unfair trouble for neighboring properties
unless the city determines how a property with no exterior space will service its structure for parking
and deliveries, general maintenance, messy contractors, various utilities some of which may be
specialized to the occupant, airspace, etc., without having to use the exterior space belonging to its
neighbor.

Cordially,

/%;4/@ Drcloey.

Philip Ducloux




B3

035200

Jaek Paarce Subdivision

Vacallng and resubdividing portions of Lots 3 and 5, and off of Lot
4, Block 13, of the Driglnal Town of Lockhart, Texas, out of the Byrd
Lockhart Survey A-17 in Caidwell County, Texas

ViEAaLEEIERISTION

pitustd in ter Clty oF LOCKRIFL, CAlEm
418 3 wna 1oct 11wl Lha @ T

BESENKING 11w ke ancey
and e dwun ing Wark

1
on of ¥ IHlow 3
tNeNE emener thin beael

Vieinlty Kap S
Hot fo Scals TR Aract
4 THENCLE 22 4o 16 33 108 e Seun
1 9\
N 1 e
\ W/ o i R AR T R
STATE DF TEXAS -

COUKTY OF CALDWEL

W, the underslaned omncrrofthe lond chown on thil BILE 3D QAetribet in Valum e
] e 786 af the Gificial Records of €aldw ell Caunty, Texss and designatad us
:Acn PEARCE SUBDIVESION in tne l:lt ol Lockhart, Caldwell Coanty, Teras do
hIrth‘ Ieﬂi‘ll! T the uUseE of the pu forever, the streats and aileys shown
. rENer Thiervat Te the Buliis 41 caremints (o the mutarr Ve 01 AN
Pubfc ¥ EHIMIes Hesiring ta Use The sames Ahat any 2ublic orliny shatl Kove Ene rnt 1o
temore and keep ramovad all or any part of asy growth or conslryction fos
maintenaece of eificlent use of Itz respective System in such sasements, aod forther
shallhpve foll acd unintarrupked dccess alpng such casem lll’i-

h llne alne anie Tract 3 and the Nann
he miaes of Baginning

Lne Zans AT 4B BE NS NRRZUT LR
vl 1980

e AN
f.uus WINHON SHITH IR
1480 Clearfark Skrcet
Lockhart TX 78644

STATEOF TEXAS
COUNTY OF CALDWELL

Bafore me, the untecsloned authorlty, personally appeared AMELIA PEARCE SHITH,
Anowo to ma ko he Lhe person whose nnma ks subzcribed to the foregoing 0ocument
4h€ acknowledaged Eto me ther he &xecuted the same far Lke merpose apd
considerations stated heredn.

Mfncin cem

Givgpundermy hand and sen ot ofli:,:ﬁﬂ'il tnlﬁ.ﬁlﬁ‘_ day or
S '-I;ilﬂrlvb}vbllt inand

S seniotoR
& == e
’ 3-51-08

Bate Notary Commission Expires

-

STATEQF TEXAS
COUNTY OF CALDWELL

Befere ma, the andercigned duthority, persanally yppeared JAMES W SMITH JR.
Enowe to me to be the person whose name Is subseribed to the Ioregojog docoment
and acknawladged te me that he eaecuted the samie fof Ihe PUrpose and
considerations statee nereo

gli'-:i&nn.nn fy hNnd snd Easiof office this the _.f)ﬁi

l‘

L EOE

.k (F2)
FFTTa0 Name nt Hotarr and Hotary Stamp

-6/-08

Date Notury Commissior Expires

STATE OF TEXAE
COUNTY OF CALDWELL

1. Phllp RUIE, ThawWwman of h lanniny whd Zoning Commizalan of tha Chy al Lacskharn
husaby coviify thai ihis plat of JACK PEARCE EUBDIVISION war approved by the Clty of
Lockhers on chis the _ YRk _ day of HEd 20p3,

STATEOF TEXAS
COUNTY OF CALDWELL

Mina 5. 5ells

I, MIna 5. 5ells, County Ciech IN BDGE Tor Cafdwell County, Texas da Bereby certify

that the farepning Lostrument with ity gertificutes of xuthentication was fiied for

Tacord in my oifice tne w2h 0 1 . p'clock
and duoly recorded an the _-;fﬁ Yin the

RacoriL of ¢

owell Countr, Tex

o
Hinp 5. Scils
cnngclun ::'cz g W
ATEOF TEXAS &"_ hed F
OURTY OF CALDWELL

L

sfessianal

12 ryistered surveyor, Stake ol Te
serkify T tn|s el e orrect resreseatation of @ ruevay mage on the
sround wnder my diract suparvislan and is true R0 cosrect ta the hest of my
knowledpe

—
IE WITMERS THEREOE my hant yud sa3l, this the 3 ey ot Jepfend
20_p3. .-

4. hereby

H
td Profeasional L o
urvayor #5455 Faam ua A Zoor Clrade cgom

N 8. STEL P 0 Bex 101
- 'ﬁ Lockhart, Traoa 78644
o o L (512) 32-2000




City of Lockhart Caldwell County, Texas
Jack Pearce Subdivision Lot 3

General Notes

1) The foowing conditions, easemenis, ripght of ways. eic.. couid efea (his parcel scoording 10 1he
Title Canmilment povided (o he Surveyor.

Sccls 17=20"

;t):mﬂ ol way to Texas Power and Light Co., recorded m Vol, 166 Py, 698, Caldwell County Deed G.F. #1510003 -
; :_H RV 5 FOR USE WITHTH ) PROPOSED BORROWER: Alvarsi 5A investments Group, LLC

) THIS SURYEY 15 FOR USE WITH THIS ONE TRANSACTION ONLY. 911 ADDRESS: 215 5. Commerce Streal

3) FLOOD ZONES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND CREATE NO LIABILITY ON THE Lockhart, Texas 78644

PART GF THE SURYEYOR AND ARE BASED ON FROM A FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAF.
The property shown lies in Faod Zone X" sctording to FEMA Pane! #48055C0120E cffeciive date
June 19, 2012 Flood Zone “X" is areas detenmined to be outside the 0.2% anaval chance floodplain
WARNING: This food SiMement es Detennined by » HU.D. - F.IA  FLOOD HAZARD
BOUNDARY MAP, DOES NOT IMPLY that the Property oc tlic improvements thereon will be Free
{rom Floadiog or Flopd Damage. O rars oceasions, Grester Floods Cai and Will Oceur, and Fioad
Heights maybe increased by Man-Mede ot Natural Causes.

SURVEY PLAT

Showing Lot 3 of JAGK PEARGE SUBDIVISION, in the City of Lockhart, Caldwell County, Texas according ie the
map or plat thereof recordad in Plat Cabinet B Slide 31 of Plat Records of Caldwell County, Texas and the
improvements as found situated thereon. | do hereby cedify to ALVAREZ 54 INVESTMENTS GRCUP, LLC that (1)
the foregoing plat /s a tue and comect representation of a survey made on the ground under my direct supervision
on Nowember 12, 2015, {2) | have shown or noted all recorded easements or right of ways listed in the title report
provided by Flowers-McDowell Abstract Company, Lockhart, Texas , G.F. #1510003 effective date Oclober 1, 2015,
and shown di observable evidence of easements on the ground. There are no encroachments, protrusions,
confiicls nor any shortages in area nor boundary other than shown hereon. THIS SURVEY IS CERTIFIED TO
THE PERSON(S) / COMPANY SHOWN HEREON AND ITS CONTENTS GUARANTEED FOR
USE WITH THIS ONE TRANSACTION ONLY DATED THIS DATE. THE SURVEYOR SHALL
INCUR NO LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS SURVEY BEYOND THIS TRANSACTION OR FOR
ANY PERSONS(S) / COMPANY NOT LISTED HEREON. Only those prints containing the raised
Survayors seal and an orginal "LIVE"sigmtm? be considered official and relied upon by the user.

Jemy L. HinkW.S #5459

4 Hinkte Surveyors, 2014

LEGEND

O CAPPED 1/2° IRON #IN SET
“STAMPED HIWGE SURVEYORS™

O] CAPPED [RON PN FOUND
*STANPED HINKLE SURVEYORS'

@  HOLE DAILLED W CONCRETE
() ORGINAL DEEDED CALLS

EWN(REI‘E

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

Fleid Book: d.c Druwn By JUH_BS

lob No. 20163153 [Drawing: 20163183.4ng

Dats: Hovember 2015 Word Disk: Bagin 11012015

Suiveyed By JLH_JOB Autocad Ofsic_Begin 11012015
SURVEYORS

P.O. Box 1027 1109 S. Main Strest Lockharl, TX 76644
Ph:(612) 398-2000 Fax:(512) 388-7683 Emzil: contact@

hinklesurveyors.com  Firm Regislration No. 100886-00




A unigue physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates and exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequality that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance.

This is the only vacant property that in the Downtown Square that abuts a rear alley. As a
provision for a subdivision, the City of Lockhart required the property owners dedicate a 15’
alley in 2004. The owners were advised that they would haveto give up the alley to have the
city approve the subdivision. All the adjacent lots were not required to dedicate the alley, nor do
they have easements for the alley. At the time, Property owners were not aware nor were they
informed that another method for the city to gain access to the alleyway was for the owners to
simply grant the city an easement. This creates an inequality with the remaining buildings that
adjoin said unofficial alley because the neighboring owners could hypothetically build across the
“alley ‘to within 10’ of their property line. We now have a 10ft. setback requirement from the
ailey, which we are requesting a variance for. Had we knowna simple easement dedication
would have sufficed, we could build to the edge of the alley without this variance. The neighbors
were not required to dedicate such alley, and they can build within 10ft. of the rear property.

The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant,

Applicant was not aware that the option to grant the city an easement instead of giving up
land was an option. The Condition was a pre-requisite for subdivisions by the City of Lockhart

The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow reasonable use of the property

Yes, we would like to maximize the building footprint on the last vacant lot downtown. There
are ways to allow us to maximize but this method will have the minimal affect.

The sole reason for the variance in not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship

No
The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same

district.

This variance will have no adverse effect on the public health and safety. it keeps in place the
alley way that was originally created to include fire truck access.

The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located and is in harmony with intent an depress of the zoning ordinance.

This variance will not alter the character of this zoning districtand especially the closely
surrounding area.



» The allyway was always an unofficial utility pathway.
» The west end of the alleyway has buildings that are 10’ apart.



C/TY OF
[

A | ZONING VARIANCE APPLICATION
(ockhart

(512)398-3461 » FAX[512) 398-3833
P.O. Box 239 ¢ Lockhart Texas 78644
308 West San Antonio Street

APPLICANT/OWNER

APPLICANT NAME j g, AmiTL ADDRESS /’7/ 50 C/w 7@«/
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE s /7227 =59,

E-MAIL :r[ \d.v- = (()u,u“}ual) l:\/e._ . O.

OWNER NAME_ . M\&Ay’a A ADDRESS =00 § - —
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE _$ 2 D/>~ 26069 Leglf B

E-MAIL /ﬂ._.. 2 (’ovgt)w\.xuw -

PROPERTY _

L.;}K;T \3\ 3‘ \'JJe /V\wr\ﬁ&_é{%

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION Nt (ovw.e gl et Sup X Cpneee

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) _4of 1 & T2 Tndf Pinee  Sobhduio

SIZE ACRE(S) ZONING CLASSIFICATION FiE K

Lo\r % L qose V)
EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) l/ AL AM?L Coeally w, %%w\wmr\

: ?w&/"w\%&o
\j'}&:\ r\o\s‘;«,%w

REQUESTED ZONING VARIANCE

VARIANCE TO SECTION(S) P“Q(‘lx I , OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE

. ]
CURRENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENT(S) W 8t buil ‘%-mu

L}Vr{)wl\ LA,‘*—
A% “ \

I

REQUESTED VARIANCE(S) 0 Gl Dol e B, -
{D\f@b'/ﬁ \ L -
WA w—




IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER
CERTIFYING THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO
REPRESENT THE PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

A WRITTEN STATEMENT DOCUMENTING THE REASON FOR THE VARIANCE(S), INCLUDING
EVIDENCE THAT THE REQUEST COMPLIES WITH THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA AS REQUIRED FOR
APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE.

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance;

2. The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant;

3. The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow areasonable use of the property;

4. The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same
district; and,

6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow;
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions;
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; and, 7) any other proposed
features of the site which are applicable to the requested variance.

4%
APPLICATION FEE OF $ VLS PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART AS FOLLOWS:

1/4 acre or less @
Between 1/4 acre and one acre $1
One acre or greater $170 plus $20.00 per each acre over one acre

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE . }Q/\/ DATE A/ a2 [ 2\

Vi

#
F §




OREICEUBEONIY vy e

ACCEPTED BY Lrovin W "\.\\&s— RECEIPT NUMBER Oloo lgl\"

DATE SUBMITTED Ac/ 3>/ 2\ CASENUMBER Zv -2\ - OA=

DATE NOTICES MAILED _5- 2l 2024 DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED 5-2 - 30721

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING DATE _ (g /=/ 2\

DECISION

CONDITIONS




ZV-21-05

214 BRAZOS ST

TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT
FOR OFF-STREET PARKING

D Subject Property

| | zoning Boundary

scale 1" = 200'




PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT ZONING VARIANCE

CASE SUMMARY /

STAFF CONTACT: Kevin Waller, Assistant City Planner % V\/ CASE NUMBER: ZV-21-05

REPORT DATE: June 3, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: June 7, 2021

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Zoning Variance to waive the off-street parking requirement for a proposed
commercial use

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Denial, due to failure to meet all six variance criteria.

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT AND OWNER: lan Stowe

SITE LOCATION: 214 Brazos St.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Part of Lot 1, Block 42, Original Town of Lockhart
SIZE OF PROPERTY: 0.239 acre

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Vacant Single-Family Residence

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: CMB (Commercial Medium Business District)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED VARIANCE: The property currently consists of a vacant single-family
residence that the applicant plans to remodel into a tattoo parlor, which is allowed by-right in the
CMB zoning district. According to Appendix Il of the Zoning Ordinance, the off-street parking
standard in the CMB district is one space per 300 square feet of building floor area, plus one per
employee in the maximum shift. The required total number of parking spaces for the proposed
commercial use is five spaces, based upon the 988 square feet of building area and one employee in
the maximum shift. Due to the fact that there is not enough space in front of the building to
construct a parking lot and the applicant has been unable to secure off-site parking from neighboring
property owners, the applicant proposes that the off-street parking requirement be waived in its
entirety. A Zoning Variance application to allow vehicles utilizing one off-street parking space to back
into the street, with the intent to submit the current application to waive the remaining four required
spaces, was denied by the Board at its May 3, 2021 Public Hearing. The current proposal includes
waiving all five required spaces, while at the same time proposing to improve that portion of Brazos
Street in front of the property to accommodate two, marked, on-street parallel parking spaces for the
future business. According to the submitted site plan, adapted from a survey of the property, each of
the two spaces will be 9 feet wide by 22 feet long, with the right-of-way width shown as 25 varas, or
69.4 feet. If the on-street parking spaces are actually constructed, the dimensions of each space
should be 8 feet wide by 23 feet long.

AREA CHARACTERISTICS: The immediate area contains a mixture of residential and commercial uses.
The adjacent properties to the north, south, and east of the subject property are in single-family
residential use and also zoned CMB. The property to the west, across Brazos Street, is in commercial
use (Walgreens). This is an older neighborhood, where some existing uses may have
“grandfathered”, or nonconforming, parking situations.



UNIQUE CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY: The subject property has existed in its current configuration for
many years, predating the zoning ordinance. Regardless of the use, compliance with the off-street
parking standard for commercial uses is difficult unless a parking lot is constructed at the rear of the
property behind the existing building, which would surround a large tree and also require one-way
driveways on either side of the building. Based upon the dimensions of the rear yard, construction of
a parking lot accommodating five spaces appears feasible.

NATURE OF HARDSHIP: Although an exceptional hardship is imposed by the location of the building
at the front of the property, where there is inadequate space for vehicles to circulate or turn around,
there does appear to be adequate room for a parking lot at the rear of the property.

EFFECT ON SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND PUBLIC SAFETY: There is some increased risk to public
safety for vehicular traffic passing by customers exiting and entering their vehicles parked on the
street. The applicant did send plans of the proposed on-street parking spaces to Public Works
Director Sean Kelley, who provided comments to Planning on June 3 and 4, 2021. Mr. Kelley stated
that he is not opposed to the on-street parking if there are no other viable options, while taking into
consideration the proximity of the parking spaces to the travel lane. He also explained that the plans
submitted were not stamped by an engineer, no drainage study had been completed to ensure no
impacts to neighboring properties, and that the on-street parking spaces may not leave enough room
for future road widening projects. In addition, it should be noted that on-street parking spaces are
for the public, and cannot be reserved for the subject property.

COMPLIANCE WITH VARIANCE CRITERIA: In order to approve a variance, the Board must find that the
request meets all six of the criteria outlined in Section 64-129(a) of the Zoning Ordinance. The
applicant submitted the attached written explanation as evidence in support of the variance. Staff
believes that the variance request should be denied, as it does not meet all six of the variance review
criteria.

ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS: An alternative solution is to provide the required five spaces by removing
the accessory structures in the backyard and constructing a parking lot. The parking lot would
require one-way driveways (one in, and the other out) flanking both sides of the building. This would
require a new driveway approach on the south side of the property and modification of the water
meter box since it would likely be in the path of the driveway. The applicant has demonstrated that
off-site parking is not available, as discussed above.

PRECEDENT: A precedent might be set if the variance were to be approved. The owners of other
commercial businesses on small properties might cite a variance approval on the subject property to
justify not providing any off-street parking or less parking than what is required.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: Public hearing notices were mailed to owners of 13 properties within
200 feet of the subject lot. A phone call was received from a surrounding property owner, who
seemed to express opposition to the request and asked for a copy of this staff report for review.



00-S85001 ‘ON UOfIensiBay uity Uk IoReAINSSPIUN
BPmuco TWS £89,-06E (ZLC)Yed 000Z-96E (Z18) Yd
PFOBL XL PEUNIOT 188ng WIEW 'S 6014 £20L X0F 'Od

SUOAZANNG

NOFYTH GILSTT LON ANV IO
AIAMNS SIHL 40 381 A

SIHL GILYQ ATNO NOLL
S ONVY NOFNIH NMO]
UODBY LMOUS ey Jayo An

2l ‘punal By uo swswetes

MOT=, 1 ooy

\ b 00ig Wl | 107 o Hed HBY¥0T Jo umo [BuUIBO

-V Aaning eyyo0 pikg sexs)

P EXiottang pesie) ey Guueuoo sund @soyy Hug
0/ (SINOSHIH ANY HO- HO NOLLOVSNYML SIHI GNOATS
NY HO- ALMHIEYIT ON HNONI TIVHS HOAIAYAS IHL 2YC
JVSMYL INO SIHL HilM 351 ¥04 UIIINYEYND SINFINOD
HS ANVENOD / (SINOSMZS IHL OL OFIHILHTD St AFANNS SIML
BpUnaq Jou eare ) sefepous Aue JOU Stouco ‘suoisnncid ‘SUBULOBOKNE DU 3

Q2oL “WOROLME D &

, MR EREN 0
SPUI-UBW 4q passanu| 29 Lew SIS POOLd DB SMOA0 LM, Pt
UED SpO0]] TNERal) ‘FOISEN0 9381 U} -9Bewre] poofy Jo Fnpoo)y
woy sald 3 | vosray spreozacadun aqr o Awadorg E R
ATdAR LON S300 'dvIN AYVANNOE QIVZVH GOOH ¥T4
= 'OOH ® g panmepg s Suswang pooj sIqL ONINGY M
"upE|dpooy SOUBID pMtuz 04770 P SPISIG B M PAIRILISKY SEAIR
51 uXn ®OZ POOL] "ZIOT "6 ML IMP AMRYD FOZI0ISSOREY
PUeY YIS 01 BWpIOXT ¥, A0Z OO M §31| umoys Amdosd
UL YN ALVY IONVENSN G00TE V WOWL NO (Esve
AV ONV FDATAUNS FHL 40 LAV THL NO AL'TEVITON
TIVIID GNY ALYINIXOE JdY TV NAOHS SANOZ Q00T (2

'AINO
NOLLDVSNYYL INO SIHL HLIM 38N ¥04 ST AZANNS STHL {1

SSION [ERUID

“Jesn sy Aqg uedn pap) pUE EDYE

.wwum.w

‘AlUnoY [IsMPred  1reyyooT jo i




214 Brazos St
Lockhart, TX 78644
stowedbc@gmail.com

Zoning Variance Response
s/17/21

Criteria 1: A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s)
located thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance.

Response: The historic 1900 built residence is setback from the property line 15’-6” and has been
rezoned Commercial by the City of Lockhart. The 35ft wide home is centered on the 65ft width of the
property leaving +/- 15 ft. on either side, The property backs up to a spring that runs into Town
Branch creek.

Criteria 2: The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property

owner, occupant or applicant;
Response: This is a pre existing condition, not caused by the property owner and applicant.

Criteria 3: The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property.
Response: Allowing the existing parking conditions, including the proposed improvement to the on-
street parking, to suffice for the future zoning of this property is the minimum amount necessary to
allow a reasonable use of the property.

Criteria 4: The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

Response: This improvements proposed will cost money. Money is not the reason for this variance.
Logistical impracticability and improvement of the street character and neighborhood is the reason

for this variance.

Criteria 5: The variance will not adversely affect public heath or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same district;
Response: This variance will only improve the current conditions of the district.

Criteria 6: The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the
subject property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.
Response: This block of Brazos St. contains 4 properties in which this will be the 3rd to be permitted
as commercial use. The street is commonly used as parallel parking which suffices the customer, and
guest parking for this block. There is no city built infrastructure on this block alleviating this
condition. This variance will in no way alter the character of this district, I do believe that the intent
and purposes of the zoning ordinance would suggest an improvement in the city right of way on this
side of the street. Our proposal would better allow for proper drainage and safer parallel parking for
this commercial district.



patasss ZONING VARIANCE APPLICATION
Vasaitasiiasiif
ockhart
LR [512)398-3461 * FAX[512) 398-3833

PO. Box 239 » Lockhart Texas 78644
308 West San Antonio Street

APPLICANT/OWNER

APPLICANT NAME AN Sthoume_ ADDRESS 729 ‘77@17\)1'5}/ 37
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE ___ 1'% HIO Jooco Lockbert , Ty
E-MAIL_Stowe DBC i ail . Com 7864 “;/

OWNER NAME LA Shyror ADDRESS

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE

E-MAIL

PROPERTY

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION 214 Brzes S
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (I PLATTED) Do of (ot 1 Blotle Yz Oﬁiﬂi;\;(A.( Toww of

7 Loclehar t
SIZE 0'2661 ACRE(S) ZONING CLASSIFICATION CMB
EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) 'P\(f"ai'd&/\‘HA',
REQUESTED ZONING VARIANCE
VARIANCE TO SECTION(S) (&\' OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE

CURRENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENT(S) (}(f sheeed AL King f—*-,romzes

ard {—(’Ql!)“!'ﬁed.

REQUESTED VARIANCE(S) O sbevet Dfmfam\ s o bhe necm.HtD %)

i )
’Hﬁ"er ﬁ)lm n—f{) i/.'?»\) Pafaﬂel Pﬁmq SPACES ﬁA—U?_D m oune
on ﬁf’___‘iﬁﬁ-‘i Ro.b) W/WWW#HMW t
[IT‘J{V! rLGuszﬁu rL ﬂ Ot Wﬁl\ T 4
4\ WOAD %ofcggaM 0%@@%» po\ary o7 & Comme o™
Gl )




SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER
CERTIFYING THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO
REPRESENT THE PERSON, ORGANIZAT!ON, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

A WRITTEN STATEMENT DOCUMENTING THE REASON FOR THE VARIANCE(S), INCLUDING
EVIDENCE THAT THE REQUEST COMPLIES WITH THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA AS REQUIRED FOR
APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE.

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance;

2. The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant;

3. The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property;

4. The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same
district; and,

6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow;
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions;
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; and, 7) any other proposed
features of the site which are applicable to the requested variance.

APPLICATION FEE OF $ 12/5 PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART AS FOLLOWS:

1/4 acre or less $125
Between 1/4 acre and one acre 0

One acre or greater $170 plus $20.00 per each acre over one acre

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE oare 5171




OFFICE USE ONLY

AGCEPTEDIBY_ Earbn Waler recelPTNUMeer 0100(,LY|

DATE SUBMITTED __ > N3/ X\ cAsE NUMBERZV- =V _OS

DATE NOTICES MAILED __ 572 10U DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED _& 2.1 - 79Y
G /¥F/2X\

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING DATE

DECISION

CONDITIONS




ZV-21-06
1205 REED DRIVE
TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM

LOT COVERAGE STANDARD
FROM 50 % TO 51.19 %

. Subject Property

Zoning Boundary

scale 1" = 400



PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT ZONING VARIANCE

CASE SUMMARY /

STAFF CONTACT: Kevin Waller, Assistant City Planner \é\/\/ CASE NUMBER: ZV-21-06
REPORT DATE: June 4, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: June 7, 2021

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Zoning Variance to exceed the maximum lot coverage standard

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Denial, due to failure to meet all six variance criteria.

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: Lance Elrod

OWNER: Blackjack Block |, LLC

SITE LOCATION: 1205 Reed Dr.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 1, Block 1, Iron Ox Addition

SIZE OF PROPERTY: 24.575 acres

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Currently vacant, proposed light industrial use
ZONING CLASSIFICATION: IL (Industrial Light Zoning District)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED VARIANCE: The applicant plans to develop the vacant subject property
with a commercial greenhouse facility. A subdivision plat was approved by the Planning and Zoning
Commission to consolidate two parcels into one for the proposed greenhouse on October 28, 2020,
along with variance requests to waive the requirement for a sidewalk along the Reed Drive frontage,
as well as to waive the concrete monument requirements at two boundary corners. The plat was
subsequently recorded on January 6, 2021. A Zoning Change was later approved for the property
from AO (Agricultural-Open Space District) to IL by the City Council on March 16, 2021, for the
purpose of increasing the maximum lot coverage standard from 30 percent to 50 percent. The
current variance proposal is to further increase the lot coverage from 50 percent to 51.19 percent for
the greenhouse facility, which the applicant states would increase yield.

AREA CHARACTERISTICS: The adjacent property to the north contains the Durant gravel operation.
The property to the east, across Reed Drive, consists of the County annex building, County
fairgrounds, and County jail. To the south of the subject property and across Blackjack Street are
industrial operations and the Lockhart Correctional Facility. The properties to the west are vacant
and in seasonal agricultural use. Land uses further west include single-family dwellings.

UNIQUE CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY: The applicant explains in the attached letter that the
greenhouse’s proposed footprint has changed since the original design in early 2020 through
technology and workflow innovations. Keeping the footprint at 50 percent of the total land area
would reveal operational constraints that would be better served in a modified (expanded) building
footprint. The applicant continues that expansion of the footprint would enable the robotic and
Al-enabled machinery to further increase yield. Staff, however, does not find a condition unique to
the currently vacant property that would require a larger greenhouse facility than the 50 percent
maximum allowed by Appendix Il of the Zoning Ordinance. The variance cannot be considered the
minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property, since the property is currently
vacant and a reasonable use would be achieved through constructing a building that does not exceed
the 50 percent threshold.



NATURE OF HARDSHIP: The building footprint’s limitation to 50 percent lot coverage does not create
a hardship simply because the applicant wishes to produce a higher product vield. In addition,
Variance Criterion 3 of Zoning Ordinance Section 64-129(a) states, in part, that the request for a
variance cannot be based exclusively upon a desire of the owner or occupant for increased financial
gain. A higher product yield directly correlates with increased financial gain.

EFFECT ON SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND PUBLIC SAFETY: The proposed increased lot coverage
from 50 percent to 51.19 percent would likely not adversely impact surrounding properties or public
safety.

COMPLIANCE WITH VARIANCE CRITERIA: In order to approve a variance, the Board must find that the
request meets all six of the criteria outlined in Section 64-129(a) of the Zoning Ordinance. The
applicant submitted the attached written explanation as evidence in support of the variance. Staff
believes that the variance request should be denied, as it does not meet all six of the variance review
criteria.

ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS: An alternative solution would simply be to reduce the size of the
proposed greenhouse facility to comply with the 50 percent lot coverage maximum. The
1.19 percent difference is small and the building design could be slightly altered to fit the available
buildable area.

PRECEDENT: A precedent might be set if the variance were to be approved. The owners of other
commercial or industrial businesses looking to develop their properties or enlarge their buildings
beyond the allowed lot coverage threshold might cite approval of a variance that doesn’t meet the
criteria on the subject property as justification for approval.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: None, as of the date of this report.



1 TEECTS

c

ARCO

MURRAY

Al

¢

sP7eg2

11.466 ACRES®

I N G S S

e e e
55 ) e, W PR
wwwuwmwmmm

| ot o b i) i (gl

Overall Site

SCALE: 1= 1200

05.14.2021

<T [
<|e — -
Epes ety K}
g= = H‘l e —s h..|| sy _— Hu i it -~
7]
w
=
=}
w
]
E Z
=
-
5 @
5 B
@ g
R
W o
8 2 &
= %
w
[V}
w
) '

Lockhart, Texas

[ron Ox: New Facility




SNOD3S
¥ Ny lg QI0mING

NYd LNOAY1 3ISNOHNIIYD ()

NOUYEYdIS
]

_ HCS 215 133HS 335 / SYH3IHLIO AS ONIQTING %
a)

1

¥IvIB ALHEY 11 L R . L3 { = “Nm ,@u
./N ” ? /( 25 ajngusap ||
o

1 | | d | |
[ m | _ |
_ _ | _ m

R L] _— m
mw _ — — I MO0 19}
aBR asnoyussis)| |

SNOIZES
Nile QIO ING

18€Z X}

YT G S o — —t—
25 7 soedg uadg | i £ |

=
e Ly

ZMo01dL
wmzoxcmmgmu. i w o n

IIIII,.II|II..v.).wl..iszmm.z.mwgam-ﬁuhnohﬁmuhtfsuzln.unrl»&zmhuﬂ = b3 : +z.-1,EF¢nx«u. u.ucquﬁzxuucunw.L%mmwm i {_& m
e ) i 1 i 1 t I ] kv ¢ | 1 I } H i ..E
| | m. - ,_ , | - m . ,‘
p—

o
ot ——

o
WotdAs 3 a0 B SIS ..ﬂwm Waleal 2021 & SISEML _."__uw
o :
P e see .
z )
Al ot B EIESNEL
ases w




Iron OX, Inc.
I Ro N 955 Terminal Way

[T e S | San Carlos, CA 94070
ox p: 650-485-1965
e: lance@ironox.com

May 20, 20217 - Rev01

May 17, 2021

To whom it may concern,

Blackjack Block I, LLC. is requesting a coverage variance for our property located at 1205
Reed Drive, Lockhart TX, 74688. The variance is to build an additional 12,789SF of building
structure on the property. Below is our written statement documenting the reason for the
variance and associated evidence.

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s)
located thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an
exceptional hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of
the ordinance;

e The hardship exists within the current building footprint that was scoped in January
2020, which has since changed through technology and workflow innovations in
recent months. This hardship would reveal itself in operational constraints that
would be better served in a modified building footprint. Expansion of the space
would enable Blackjack Block I's ecosystem of robotics and Al enabled hydroponic
farming to further increase yield.

2. The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property
owner, occupant, or applicant;

e No unigue physical condition or characteristic noted.
3. The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the
property;

e Yes, the requested 1.19% (12,789SF) variance is the minimum amount needed by
Blackjack Block I. This is the last request for additional space on the associated

property.



4. The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

e Blackjack Block I's production system is rooted in flexibility. The additional 12,789SF
of structure will unlock this flexibility which in turn enables us to shift our post
harvesting processes to maintain customer service regardless of season or
requested product mix.

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the
same District;

e The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not
substantially or permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent
conforming property in the same District

6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the
subject property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning
ordinance.

e The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which
the subject property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of
the zoning ordinance.

Thank you.

randon Alexander, CEO



CITY OF

LOCkhar t ZONING VARIANCE APPLICATION

TEXAS (512)398-346] + FAX[512) 3983833
APPLICANT/OWNER B " 08 west sapantomio street
appLicanT Nave __Lance Elrod aporess_ 999 Terminal Way
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE ~ 090.237.9296 San Carlos, CA 94070
emaL  lANCE@Ironox.com
owNER Name  Blackjack Block I, LLC. aooress 295 Terminal Way
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE  0D0-485-1965 San Carlos, CA 94070

evaL  greg@ironox.com

PROPERTY
ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION 1205 Reed Drive, LOCkhart, TX 78644

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) See attached plat previously filed with Qity of Lockhart

Coxr \, Bleve |, 0 : y
size 24575 acre(s) ZONING cLassIFIcATIoN L = Light Industrial

EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(s) _AAgricultural - Green House production

REQUESTED ZONING VARIANCE

VARIANGE To secTions) O€C 64 - Appendix Il OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE
CURRENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENT(S) 50% Maximum Lot Coverage with Structures

REQUESTED VARIANGE(S) Additional \ 19 % of Lot Coverage with Structures (Total 51.19%)




IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER
CERTIFYING THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO
REPRESENT THE PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

A WRITTEN STATEMENT DOCUMENTING THE REASON FOR THE VARIANCE(S), INCLUDING
EVIDENCE THAT THE REQUEST COMPLIES WITH THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA AS REQUIRED FOR
APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE.

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance;

2. The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant;

3. The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property;

4. The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

5 The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same
district; and,

8. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow,
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions;
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; and, 7) any other proposed
features of the site which are applicable to the requested variance.

APPLICATION FEE OF $ 641.50 PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART AS FOLLOWS:

1/4 acre or less $125
Between 1/4 acre and one acre $150
One acre or greater 24.575 Acres $170 plus $20.00 per each acre over cne acre

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND T IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE Z‘- WM oate May 17, 2021




OFFICE USE ONLY

% i

accepTEDBY K orin \’\/N\\u RECEIPT NUMBER & Y© © A\
DATE SUBMITTED S/ 2\ CASE NUMBERZV- X\ .96
DATE NOTICES MAILED S IR VANN DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED SF L X\

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING DATE 6/:\'/ l‘\

DECISION

CONDITIONS




